

- (Bitar et al., 2019) Bitar, N., Hamadeh, M., & Khoueiri, R. (2019). Impact of political instability on foreign direct investment in Lebanon. *Asian Social Science*, 16(1), 41–48. <https://doi.org/10.5539/ass.v16n1p41>.
- (Blessley & Mudambi, 2022) Blessley, M., & Mudambi, S. M. (2022). A trade war and a pandemic: Disruption and resilience in the food bank supply chain. *Industrial Marketing Management*, 102, 58–73. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.indmarman.2022.01.002>.
- (Bown, 2021) Bown, C. P. (2021). The US–China trade war and Phase One agreement. *Journal of Policy Modeling*, 43(4), 805–843. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jpolmod.2021.02.009>.
- (Bris et al., 2004) Bris, A., Koskinen, Y., & Pons, V. (2004). Corporate financial policies and performance around currency crises. *The Journal of Business*, 77(4), 749–796. <https://doi.org/10.1086/422438>.
- (Caldara & Iacoviello, 2022) Caldara, D., & Iacoviello, M. (2022). Measuring geopolitical risk. *American Economic Review*, 112(4), 1194–1225. <https://doi.org/10.1257/aer.20191823>.
- (Coşkun & Ertugut, 2024) Coşkun, A. E., & Ertugut, R. (2024). How do uncertainties affect supply-chain resilience? The moderating role of information sharing for sustainable supply-chain management. *Sustainability*, 16(1), 131. <https://doi.org/10.3390/su16010131>.
- (Cui & Li, 2023) Cui, C., & Li, L. S.-Z. (2023). Trade policy uncertainty and new firm entry: Evidence from China. *Journal of Development Economics*, 163, 103093. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jdeveco.2023.103093>.
- (Dess & Robinson, 1984) Dess, G. G., & Robinson, R. B., Jr. (1984). Measuring organisational performance in the absence of objective measures: The case of the privately held firm and conglomerate business unit. *Strategic Management Journal*, 5(3), 265–273. <https://doi.org/10.1002/smj.4250050306>.
- (Dixit & Pindyck, 1994) Dixit, A. K., & Pindyck, R. S. (1994). *Investment under uncertainty*. Princeton University Press. <https://doi.org/10.2307/j.ctt7snv>.
- (Dong et al., 2025) Dong, L., Hidthiir, M. H. B., & Mansur, M. B. (2025). Economic policy uncertainty and China's FDI inflows: Moderating effects of financial development and political stability. *Journal of Risk and Financial Management*, 18(7), 354. <https://doi.org/10.3390/jrfm18070354>.
- (Durnev & Mangen, 2020) Durnev, A., & Mangen, C. (2020). The spillover effects of MD&A disclosures for real investments: The role of industry competition. *Journal of Accounting and Economics*, 70(2–3), 201–219. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jacceco.2015.02.002>.
- (Eser & Wu, 2021) Eser, F., & Wu, X. (2021). Geopolitical risk and firm investment decisions: Evidence from global firms. *Journal of International Financial Markets, Institutions and Money*, 72, 101347. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.intfin.2021.101347>.
- (Evenett, 2019) Evenett, S. J. (2019). Protectionism, state discrimination, and international business since the onset of the Global Financial Crisis. *Journal of International Business Policy*, 2(1), 9–36. <https://doi.org/10.1057/s42214-019-00021-0>.
- (C. Feng et al., 2023) Feng, C., Han, L., Vigne, S., & Xu, Y. (2023). Geopolitical risk and the dynamics of international capital flows. *Journal of International Financial Markets, Institutions and Money*, 82, 101693. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.intfin.2022.101693>.
- (J. Feng et al., 2024) Feng, J., Tang, J., Qi, Z., & Liu, J. (2024). Supply chain finance and innovation investment: Based on financing constraints. *Finance Research Letters*, 63, 105349. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.frl.2024.105349>.
- (Fofanah, 2022) Fofanah, P. (2022). Effects of exchange rate volatility on economic growth: Evidence from West Africa. *International Journal of Business and Economics Research*, 11(1), 32–48. <https://doi.org/10.11648/j.ijber.20221101.15>.
- (Fornell & Larcker, 1981) Fornell, C., & Larcker, D. F. (1981). Evaluating structural equation models with unobservable variables and measurement error. *Journal of Marketing Research*, 18(1), 39–50. <https://doi.org/10.1177/002224378101800104>.
- (Gao et al., 2024) Gao, H., Chen, W., Li, J., & Zhou, T. (2024). Economic policy uncertainty and foreign direct investment: Evidence from China. *Structural Change and Economic Dynamics*, 70, 178–191. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.strueco.2024.01.014>.
- (Gereffi, 2020) Gereffi, G. (2020). What does the COVID-19 pandemic teach us about global value chains? The case of medical supplies. *Journal of International Business Policy*, 3(3), 287–301. <https://doi.org/10.1057/s42214-020-00062-w>.
- (Ghassemi & Sadr, 2022) Ghassemi, H., & Sadr, S. M. (2022). Firm heterogeneity and responses to global uncertainty shocks. *Economic Modelling*, 116, 105995. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.econmod.2022.105995>.
- (Henisz, 2000) Henisz, W. J. (2000). The institutional environment for multinational investment. *Journal of Law, Economics, & Organization*, 16(2), 334–364.
- (Huchzermeier & Stehle, 2025) Huchzermeier, A., & Stehle, H. (2025). Navigating geopolitical risks in global supply chains: A systematic literature review. *SSRN Electronic Journal*. <https://doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.5161777>.
- (Hui, 2021) Hui, H. C. (2021). The long-run effects of geopolitical risk on foreign exchange markets: Evidence from some ASEAN countries. *International Journal of Emerging Markets*, 17(6), 1543–1564. <https://doi.org/10.1108/ijoem-08-2020-1001>.

<https://doi.org/10.3390/xxxxx>

Commented [M54]: We corrected the doi link. Please confirm.

Commented [ss54R2]: Yes. We agree.

Commented [M55]: This reference is not cited in the main text. Please add a citation or delete it if it is not needed.

Commented [ss55R2]: Yes. We have delete it.

Commented [M56]: We are sorry but we could not find the required information about this entry. And the doi link is invalid. Please check and revise.

Commented [ss56R2]: Thank you for your comment. We have checked the reference and removed the citation from the manuscript due to the unavailable information and invalid DOI link.

Commented [M57]: We removed unnecessary website for journal refs with complete information in all refs. Please confirm.

Commented [ss57R2]: Yes. We agree

- (Khan, 2025) Khan, M. A. (2025). Investigating the intersection of organizational behavior, supply chain practices, economic outcomes, financial excellence and CSR for corporate identity improvement. *Measuring Business Excellence*, 29(3), 551–572. <https://doi.org/10.1108/mbse-06-2024-0083>.
- (Kim & Han, 2024) Kim, T., & Han, J. M. (2024). The impact of exchange rate fluctuations on the performance of domestic manufacturing companies. *KIET Industrial Economic Review*, 29(3), 59–67. <https://doi.org/10.1108/mbse-06-2024-0083>.
- (Kiptoo, 2024) Kiptoo, J. (2024). The influence of political stability on foreign direct investment (FDI). *International Journal of Developing Country Studies*, 6(1), 74–86. <https://doi.org/10.47941/ijdc.2165>.
- (Kock, 2015) Kock, N. (2015). Common method bias in PLS SEM: A full collinearity assessment approach. *International Journal of e-Collaboration*, 11(4), 1–10. <https://doi.org/10.4018/ijec.2015100101>.
- (Kurecic & Kokotovic, 2017) Kurecic, P., & Kokotovic, F. (2017). The relevance of political stability on FDI: A VAR analysis and ARDL models for selected small, developed, and instability threatened economies. *Economies*, 5(3), 22. <https://doi.org/10.3390/economies5030022>.
- (Li et al., 2017) Li, X., Wu, Q., Holsapple, C. W., & Goldsby, T. (2017). An empirical examination of firm financial performance along dimensions of supply chain resilience. *Management Research Review*, 40(3), 254–269. <https://doi.org/10.1108/mrr-02-2016-0030>.
- (P. L. Liu et al., 2025) Liu, P. L., Lü, Z., & Yoon, S.-M. (2025). Impact of US–China tensions on the volatility, correlation, and hedging effects of gold and crude oil prices. *SSRN*. <https://doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.5213775>.
- (X. Liu & Zhang, 2024) Liu, X., & Zhang, X. (2024). Geopolitical risk and currency returns. *Journal of Banking & Finance*, 161, 107097. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbankfin.2024.107097>.
- (Mao & Görg, 2020) Mao, H., & Görg, H. (2020). Friends like this: The impact of the US–China trade war on global value chains. *The World Economy*, 43(7), 1776–1791. <https://doi.org/10.1111/twec.12967>.
- (Morina et al., 2020) Morina, F., Hysa, E., Ergün, U., Panait, M., & Voica, M. C. (2020). The effect of exchange rate volatility on economic growth: Case of the CEE countries. *Journal of Risk and Financial Management*, 13(8), 177. <https://doi.org/10.3390/jrfm13080177>.
- (Musyoki et al., 2012) Musyoki, D., Pokhariyal, G. P., & Pundo, M. (2012). The impact of real exchange rate volatility on economic growth: Kenyan evidence. *Business and Economic Horizons*, 7, 59–75. <https://doi.org/10.15208/beh.2012.5>.
- (North, 1990) North, D. C. (1990). *Institutions, institutional change and economic performance*. Cambridge University Press. <https://doi.org/10.1017/cbo9780511808678>.
- (Pasali & Chaudhary, 2020) Pasali, S. S., & Chaudhary, A. (2020). Assessing the impact of foreign ownership on firm performance by size: Evidence from firms in developed and developing countries. *Transnational Corporations*, 27(2), 183–204. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tnc.2020.08.007>.
- (Paul, 2025) Paul, P. (2025). The role of supply chain finance in enhancing financial performance: Evidence from personal and home care product industry. *Investment Management and Financial Innovations*, 22(2), 77–85. [https://doi.org/10.21511/imfi.22\(2\).2025.07](https://doi.org/10.21511/imfi.22(2).2025.07).
- (Pástor & Veronesi, 2013) Pástor, L., & Veronesi, P. (2013). Political uncertainty and risk premia. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 110(3), 520–545. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jfineco.2013.08.007>.
- (Podsakoff et al., 2003) Podsakoff, P. M., MacKenzie, S. B., Lee, J. Y., & Podsakoff, N. P. (2003). Common method biases in behavioural research: A critical review of the literature and recommended remedies. *Journal of Applied Psychology*, 88(5), 879–903. <https://doi.org/10.1037/0021-9010.88.5.879>.
- (Qamruzzaman & Karim, 2024) Qamruzzaman, M., & Karim, S. (2024). Green energy, green innovation, and political stability led to green growth in OECD nations. *Energy Strategy Reviews*, 55, 101519. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.esr.2024.101519>.
- (Saha et al., 2022) Saha, S., Sadeikin, M. N., & Saha, S. K. (2022). Effects of institutional quality on foreign direct investment inflow in lower-middle income countries. *Heliyon*, 8(10), e10828. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.heliyon.2022.e10828>.
- (Song et al., 2021) Song, Y., Hao, F., Hao, X., & Gozgor, G. (2021). Economic policy uncertainty, outward foreign direct investments, and green total factor productivity: Evidence from firm-level data in China. *Sustainability*, 13(4), 2339. <https://doi.org/10.3390/su13042339>.
- (Tjandrasa, 2021) Tjandrasa, B. B. (2021). Determinants of political stability to support foreign investment in Indonesia. *Petra International Journal of Business Studies*, 4(2), 97–108. <https://doi.org/10.9744/ijbs.4.2.97-108>.
- (Truong et al., 2024) Truong, L. D., Friday, H. S., & Pham, T. D. (2024). The effects of geopolitical risk on foreign direct investment in a transition economy: Evidence from Vietnam. *Journal of Risk and Financial Management*, 17(3), 101. <https://doi.org/10.3390/jrfm17030101>.
- (Wang et al., 2024) Wang, R., Qamruzzaman, M., & Karim, S. (2024). Unveiling the power of education, political stability and ICT in shaping technological innovation in BRI nations. *Heliyon*, 10(9), e30142. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.heliyon.2024.e30142>.
- (Williamson, 1985) Williamson, O. E. (1985). *The economic institutions of capitalism: Firms, markets, relational contracting*. Free Press.

<https://doi.org/10.3390/xxxxx>

Commented [M58]: We removed “SSRN. <https://ssrn.com/abstract=4916912>.” Please confirm.

Commented [ss58R2]: Yes. We agree

Commented [M59]: This reference is not cited in the main text. Please add a citation or delete it if it is not needed.

Commented [ss59R2]: Thank you for your comment. We have removed the reference

Commented [M60]: We revised “Elsevier BV” to “SSRN”. Please confirm.

Commented [ss60R2]: We agree

Commented [M61]: Please add the volume and page range if there is.

Commented [M62]: 1. Please confirm updated page range.
2. We removed “SSRN. <https://ssrn.com/abstract=3692334>”. Please confirm.

Commented [ss62R2]: Yes We agree

Commented [M63]: This reference is not cited in the main text. Please add a citation or delete it if it is not needed.

Commented [ss63R2]: Yes. I delete it.

Commented [M64]: In principle, citing retracted papers is usually discouraged, unless a clear justification is provided. Please either remove the reference or provide a justification.

Commented [ss64R2]: Thank you for your comment. We have removed the reference from the manuscript to avoid citing a retracted paper.

(Wu & Shao, 2023) Wu, W., & Shao, C. (2023). How does home and host-country policy uncertainty affect outward FDI? Firm-level evidence from China. *Economia Politica*, 40(2), 495–515. <https://doi.org/10.1007/s40888-023-00298-8>.

(Yan et al., 2022) Yan, H., Xiao, W., Deng, Q., & Xiong, S. (2022). Analysis of the impact of U.S. trade policy uncertainty on China based on Bayesian VAR model. *Journal of Mathematics*, 2022(1), 7124997. <https://doi.org/10.1155/2022/7124997>.

(Yensu et al., 2022) Yensu, J., Nkrumah, S. K., Amankwah, S., & Ledi, K. K. (2022). The effect of exchange rate volatility on economic growth. *Risk Governance and Control: Financial Markets and Institutions*, 12(4), 33–45. <https://doi.org/10.22495/rgcv12i4p2>.

(B. Zhang et al., 2023) Zhang, B., Ma, J., Khan, M. A., Repnikova, V., Shidlovskaya, K., Barykin, S., & Ahmad, M. S. (2023). The effect of economic policy uncertainty on foreign direct investment in the era of global value chain: Evidence from the Asian countries. *Sustainability*, 15(7), 6131. <https://doi.org/10.3390/su15076131>.

(Y. Zhang et al., 2023) Zhang, Y., He, J., He, M., & Li, S. (2023). Geopolitical risk and stock market volatility: A global perspective. *Finance Research Letters*, 53, 103620. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.frl.2022.103620>.

(Zhao et al., 2023) Zhao, N., Hong, J., & Lau, K. H. (2023). Impact of supply chain digitalization on supply chain resilience and performance: A multi-mediation model. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 259, 108817. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2023.108817>.

(Zheng et al., 2025) Zheng, M., Wang, R., Ye, J., & Li, T. (2025). How does supply chain finance enhance firms' supply chain resilience? *International Review of Economics & Finance*, 102, 104231. <https://doi.org/10.1016/j.iref.2025.104231>.

(Zhou, 2020) Zhou, Y. (2020). *The US-China trade war and global value chains*. The World Bank.

(M. Zhu et al., 2024) Zhu, M., Miao, S., Lam, H. K. S., Liang, C., & Yeung, A. C. L. (2024). Navigating through geopolitical risk: The role of supply chain concentration. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*, 45(5), 1032–1065. <https://doi.org/10.1108/ijopm-03-2024-0248>.

(X. Zhu & Wu, 2022) Zhu, X., & Wu, Y. J. (2022). How does supply chain resilience affect supply chain performance? The mediating effect of sustainability. *Sustainability*, 14(21), 14626. <https://doi.org/10.3390/su142114626>.

Disclaimer/Publisher’s Note: The statements, opinions and data contained in all publications are solely those of the individual author(s) and contributor(s) and not of MDPI and/or the editor(s). MDPI and/or the editor(s) disclaim responsibility for any injury to people or property resulting from any ideas, methods, instructions or products referred to in the content.

Commented [M65]: There is only one citation “(Zhang et al., 2023)” in main text. Please ensure this ref and the next ref are both cited in main text. Or please remove unnecessary reference.

Commented [ss65R2]: Thank you for your comment. We have reviewed the references and removed the unnecessary reference from the manuscript.

Commented [M66]: We removed “Всемирный банк”. Please confirm.

Commented [ss66R2]: Yes. We agree

Page 11: [1] Commented [M19] MDPI 21/07/2026 21:33:00

If there is only one subsection within a section, it should not be numbered. We have thus removed this section number. Please confirm.

Page 17: [2] Commented [ss30R2] sugeng suroso 23/07/2026 09:54:00

Done. The table has been cited in the text, and the first citation now appears in the correct numerical order.

Page 17: [3] Commented [M31] MDPI 21/07/2026 21:52:00

Please cite this table in the text and ensure that the first citation of each table appears in numerical order.

Page 17: [4] Commented [ss31R2] sugeng suroso 23/07/2026 10:00:00

We have revised the manuscript accordingly. The table has been cited in the text, and its first citation now appears in the correct numerical order

Page 17: [5] Commented [ss32R2] sugeng suroso 23/07/2026 10:02:00

We have removed the unnecessary bold formatting throughout the manuscript, including all similar instances.

Page 17: [6] Commented [M32] MDPI 21/07/2026 18:18:00

Please confirm if the bold formatting is necessary; if not, please remove it. The following highlights are the same.

Page 17: [7] Commented [M33] MDPI 21/07/2026 22:06:00

Please check if it should be $\leftrightarrow$. If so, please revise all in whole paper.

Page 17: [8] Commented [ss33R2] sugeng suroso 23/07/2026 10:05:00

We have checked the notation and revised it to a one-way arrow ($\rightarrow$) consistently throughout the manuscript.

Manuscript published

<https://www.mdpi.com/1911-8074/19/8/555>